

MINORITY AND JUSTICE COMMISSION

ZOOM VIDEOCONFERENCE FRIDAY, SEPTEMBER 30[™], 2022 9:00 A.M. – 12:00 P.M. JUSTICE MARY YU, CO-CHAIR JUDGE VERONICA GALVÁN, CO-CHAIR



MEETING NOTES

Commission Members

Judge Veronica Alicea-Galván, Lisa Castilleja Judge Faye Chess Professor Mark Chinen Judge Linda Coburn Grace Cross Chad Enright Professor Jason Gillmer Judge Anthony Gipe Judge Bonnie Glenn Kitara Johnson Jones Latricia Kinlow Judge LeRoy McCullough Justice Raquel Montoya-Lewis Karen Murray **Christopher Sanders** Judge Ketu Shah Judge Lori K Smith Judge Leah Taguba

AOC Staff

Kelley Amburgey-Richardson Cynthia Delostrinos Frank Thomas Avery Miller Dr. Carl McCurley Mishani Jack-Gonzalez

Liaisons

Wanda Barrett, *Embedded Law Librarian* Esperanza Borboa, *Access to Justice Board* Leslie Burnett, *SU Law* Stephanie Chavez, *SU Law* Monica Mendoza-Castrejon, *SU Law* Angel Torres Mann, *UW Law* Donald Peters, *UW Law* Ciera Phung-Marion, *UW Law* Roberto White, *UW Law* Whitney Wakefield, *Gonzaga Law* Alicia Chaudry, *Gonzaga Law* Gloria Herrera, *Gonzaga Law* David Normoyle, *Gonzaga Law*

Guests

Diane Schneider Zoe Elliot Sammie Alizadeh Bob Boruchowitz Sumeer Singla Judge Sara Dannen Dennis Yule

CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order at 9:00 AM

Welcome and Introductions

- The MJC Co-chairs introduced themselves.
- Attendance was called via roll-call

Approval of July 22nd Meeting Minutes

• The minutes were approved as presented.

CHAIR & STAFF REPORT

• Jury Diversity Study Update – Frank Thomas

- Jury Diversity Study created by the legislature and now on it's 4th iteration, a demographic survey recording 250,000 statewide responses. Ideally, this will give us greater breadth, depth and multiple levels of data.
- Jury Survey team (Seattle University, Cynthia Delostrinos <>) went over the initial responses and did some preliminary work, advised on best course moving towards the overarching goal to improve representation on juries.
- Data will serve as a baseline from which we can measure interventions proposed by advocates. The policy wing of the courts has submitted to legislature on jury diversity to explore pilot projects such as increases in juror pay, onsite childcare centers, expand jury pool
- Note that this survey is occurring during virtual selection of juries. Acknowledging that we're not operating in normal times, but still hoping that we will be able to ID trends in participation based on the use of virtual/ in-person jury pools of different demographics

Racial Justice Consortium Implementation – Cynthia Delostrinos Johnson and Frank Thomas

- The Racial Justice Consortium was formed by MJC to bring together institutional stakeholders in the judiciary to create a path towards systemic reform on racism in the justice system. The result of the yearlong endeavor was the RJC Action plan, with six different issue areas. Implementation now falls on AOC and MJC. Many recs implicate different parties inside and outside the judiciary.
- Frank recently attended conference at UW about anti-racist policy leadership, embraced a number of frameworks. Ask for Commission members to check out the action plan, think about the ways your work or your expertise fits into it.
- Gearing up for the legislative session in January, transmitted a memo to courts that outlines commonalities between the RJC Action Plan and various other system-wide reports, including the GJC Study, the Race and Criminal Justice Task Force to find synergies as we work through the recommendations.

• Research Update – Frank Thomas

 Carl McCurley, the Washington State Center for Court Research present to discuss ongoing research work.

- Most of the focus is on one project: the research on pre-trial detention. National literature indicated an increased proportionality of incarcerated women and girls, primarily driven by an increased use of pre-trial detention, need data to interrogate this question. Dr. Andrew Peterson obtained county jail data and statewide data from WSP, from 2014- Present from 9 largest counties in the state.
- There are a number of different research questions to explore: evaluating the topline demographic proportionality, advocating for more accountability, reliability, transparency. More update on Dec. 9th.
- GR 31 and CrR 2.1 Update Judge Veronica Galvan and Annie Lee
 - No update to report on either topic, Annie Lee not present.
 - Issue will be tabled to Dec. 9th Meeting

COMMISSION LIAISON & COMMITTEE REPORTS

- Outreach Committee Judge Glenn and Lisa Castilleja
 - Outreach Committee voted unanimously to nominate Trish Kinlow for the Board of Judicial Administration Innovating Justice Award for the Unified Payments Program, which allows anyone owing money in a LFO in any participating court to combine into one payment plan.
 - Lisa Castilleja discussed the upcoming annual Youth and Law Forums. Tukwila event is October 22nd, Spokane event will be November 4th and both will need volunteers, the Commission can reimburse travel expenses. The forums are about meeting the community, inspiring young people to see what legal impacts on the community, allows young people to meet cops in a safe environment, gives them advice on how to keep their records clean and know their rights.
 - Need to authorize Commission support and funding for both of these programs. Judge Gipe moves for an action item to split the \$3,000 budgeted between the Tukwila and Spokane, Judge Muccullough seconds. Motion carries.
 - Artwork: MJC artwork is drafted up for printing and in the production phase, hoping to have a proof to Judge Gipe and the artist hopefully to share at upcoming events.
- National Conference Planning Committee Judge Veronica Galvan
 - Met initially to put together a few sub-committees to work on planning for the National Conference coming up next year. Will form a PR and Engagement Subcommittee and a Curriculum Subcommittee.
 - Opportunity to show the entire country what we're doing in WA, work with other states. Conference will coincide with the Supreme Court Symposium, will additionally need to decide on a topic/ subject area.
- Education Committee Judge Lori K. Smith

0

- The Education Committee proposed three sessions for SCJA:
 - 1. Commissioner Jonathan Lack's plenary session on canon rule prohibiting bias based on gender ID and expression. The session will provide the legal basis, instructions, best practices, etc. There will be a chance to interact with lawyers from the trans community to better

understand purpose and application. Cost: \$500-\$700 for lodging and travel for panelists.

- 2. Judge Mccullough/ Trish Kinlow proposal for session on management of court staff and court administration. The purpose is to address that post-Covid, the courts are different, consider access to justice issues and learning more about what justice looks like to average court user. Ideally, participants will leave more knowledge of barriers and more ideas on equitable innovation, make the courts more attractive to new employees.
- 3. Session on the lens with which experts conduct evaluations, ie assessments, evaluation, treatments, etc. and whether there is a discrepancy for litigants of color. There will be a panel of service providers from different communities, a CASA, judicial officers, a GAL. Decision making is only as good as information, and this session will train participants to critically evaluate the evaluations.
- Access to Justice Board Liaison Mikael Chen, Office Civil Rights Spokane
 - Dates set for the Access to Justice Conference next year: September 28-30 in Tacoma, will be finalizing the theme soon, getting lots of diverse input. Including from the citizen panel put together and four new board members coming on in October.
 - Have been working with folks w lived experience, recruited some diverse, community-rooted folks across the state.
 - In Yakima, funding a survey to see what the needs are that the Access to Justice Board will respond to, getting input directly from the community. Hoping to replicate this in other counties.
- Sentencing Task Force Judge Veronica Galvan,
 - This was originally supposed to be a 1-year task force but has expanded to 3 year. Working on reimagining the sentencing grid, which has led to robust discussion with the police, the Washington Association of Prosecuting Attorneys, representatives, incarcerated people, public defenders.
 - Working on getting compromise from all stakeholders, looking at changes on the proposed grid, making it a bit more logical and predictable.
 - Questions to answer: what purpose are we serving with incarceration? Retribution? Punishment and rehabilitation? Community safety? How do we reintegrate people back into society. Weighing accountability for crime vs. practicalities of bringing incarcerated people back into society.
- BJA Alternatives to Incarceration Task Force Judge Ketu Shah
 - The BJA sponsored a broad based committee to look at alternatives to incarceration. They recently met for their first meeting, very productive, and will be meeting regularly throughout next year. Still working on organizing the scope and priorities. The end product of the committee will be report and recommendations.
- WPIC Jury Instruction Video Judge Leah Taguba
 - Washington Pattern Instructions Committee is working to create a new Jury instruction video. They have provided the Supreme Court with their proposal and estimated breakdown of costs of refilming some aspects of the jury video that the court will consider at their next session en banc.

- Some edits proposed to the video was to replace the current moderator and refilm jury scene with the goal of having more diversity, make scenes inside jurors homes more representative of different demographics, remove some scenes that appear to be racially biased, replace with graphics/scenes from archive that do not ID specific racial groups.
- There was an unconscious bias section addendum, which was moved closer to the beginning so it makes more sense, so understanding bias can flow through the whole process and expand the discussion.
- With all changes and new actors hired, the costs is \$22,850. Video will be updated again within 3-5 years as technology changes, this project started in 2017 and a lot happened between initial conceptualization and final.
- Washington State Bar Licensure Task Force Frank Thomas
 - Task Force created last year and re-invigorated with the appointment of a new cochair to support Judge Montoya Lewis, the newly appointed dean Anthony Varona of Seattle University School of Law, presented to the Task Force as part of the history subcommittee on the history of bar licensure.
 - Anticipate the task force will start presenting by the end of the year. Recognizing how the bar exam created challenges for students at the height of the Covid pandemic, decision by the Supreme Court to provide emergency diploma privilege in July 2020, grappling with the challenges/relief and what disproportionally hurts Black and Native students.

LAW STUDENT LIAISONS 2022 INTRODUCTION

- Each Law Schools faculty advisor facilitated brief introductions from new law students joining as Liaisons:
 - Seattle University School of Law Leslie Burnett, Stephanie Chavez, Monica Mendoza-Castrejon
 - **Gonzaga University School of Law –** Whitney Wakefield, Alicia Chaudry, Gloria Herrera, David Normoyle
 - University of Washington School of Law Angel Torres Mann, Donald Peters, Ciera Phung-Marion, Roberto White

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned at 12:03 PM